
 

 

 

Agenda 

 

Board of Directors 
 

Friday, October 4, 2019 

Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting 

Kent County Commission Chambers 

300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 

 

1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock 

 

2. Minutes of August 2, 2019        Action 

 

3. Committee Reports 

  

 A. Operations Committee        Information 

       
 B. Finance Committee 

  i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending   Action 

   August 31, 2019 

  ii. SMG August 2019 Financial Statements –    Information 

   DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® 

   

4. Director & Officer Insurance Renewal       Action 

 

5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars       Rich MacKeigan 

 

6. Public Comment 

 

7. CAA Board Member Comments 

 

8. Adjournment  

 

 

 

 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, November 1, 2019 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

300 MONROE AVENUE, NW | GRAND RAPIDS, MI 

Friday, August 2, 2019 

 

 

Attendance  

  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chairperson 

   Birgit Klohs  

   Charlie Secchia 

   Floyd Wilson, Jr. 

   Richard Winn 

 

Members Absent: Rosalynn Bliss 

   Lew Chamberlin 

    

Staff/Others:  Tom Bennett   Experience Grand Rapids 

   Scott Gorsline   Grand Rapids Griffins 

   Chris Knape   K Corner Consulting 

   Rich MacKeigan  SMG 

   Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 

   Eddie Tadlock   SMG 

   Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 

   John Van Houten  Progressive AE 

   Susan Waddell   CAA 

   Mark Washington  City of Grand Rapids 

   Robert White   CAA  

    Jessica Wood   Dickinson Wright   

              

1. Call to Order  

 

Chairperson, Steve Heacock, called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.  Secretary/Treasurer, Richard Winn, 

recorded the meeting minutes.   

 

2. Minutes of Prior Meeting 

 
Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve the June 7, 2019, Minutes.  Motion carried. 

 

3. Committee Reports 

 

A. Operations Committee 

 

  i. Experience Grand Rapids Report 

 

Mr. Bennett provided an overview of the CVB’s recent bookings, sales activities, site visits, marketing 

efforts, and major bid presentations.  The Smith Travel Research Star Report revealed that June was a a 

little slow, although overall strong year-to-date.  Staff booked six groups for the convention center 

including Michigan Council of Exceptional Children, Michigan Association of Insurance Agents, S. 

Abraham & Sons, and Amway IBO.  During June and July, the sale team was busy on the road for trade 

shows, meetings, and sales missions.  The CVB hosted its 27-hour visit and held Put a Fork in It, with 

four food trucks, in Lansing. 

 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
August 2, 2019 – 2 

 

 B. Finance Committee 

 

  i. Acceptance of June 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Motion by Mr. Winn, support by Mr. Wilson, to (i) accept the June 2019 Consolidated Financial 

Statements and (ii) authorize an increase in the FY 2020 capital appropriation of $1,305,305, 
representing the total of FY 2019 balances estimated to be expended in FY 2020 to complete the projects.  

Motion carried. 

 

  ii. SMG June 2019 DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® 

   Financial Statements 

 

The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.   

 

4. Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting 

 

The quarterly report regarding the City/County utilization of discounted DeVos Place® monthly parking 

passes was included as an information item. 

 

5. Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License 

 

Mr. MacKeigan requested approval to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

for special liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food Festival that will be 

held November 21-23, 2019.   

 

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve an application to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission for special liquor licenses in conjunction with the International Wine, Beer & Food Festival.  

Motion carried. 

 

6. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 

 

Mr. MacKeigan reported that the Proof of Concept Task Force work continues as it related to the 

amphitheater and DeVos Place® headquarters hotel.  Locker room renovations are ongoing at the Van 

Andel Arena®.  The merger between AEG and SMG may be announced in the next couple of months.   

 

7. Public Comment 

 

None. 

 

8. Adjournment 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m.  The next CAA Board meeting is Friday, October 4, 2019.   

 

 

 

     ______________________________________   

Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility

Rolling Forecast 2

Year-to-Date Comparable 3

Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY19 & FY20 4

Lagging 12 Months Net Operating Proceeds 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts

Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Special Accounts - Amphitheater Project 8

Grand Rapids-Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report

August 31, 2019



Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 7                   7                   5                     6                     7                    5                             

Attendance 53,255          58,000          39,765            43,940            58,000           39,765                    

Event Income 463,358$      697,202$      368,580$        376,356$        697,202$       368,580$                

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 45                 59                 69                   26                   41                  26                           

Attendance 39,685          42,650          35,170            25,690            30,450           22,645                    

Event Income 549,450$      590,884$      556,897$        351,469$        409,185$       341,875$                

Prior Year Budget Actual

Operating Income (Loss) (110,627)$      (53,588)$        (515,231)$              

Capital/Repair/Replacement (589,821)         (605,360)        (605,360)                 

Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (700,448)$      (658,948)$      (1,120,591)$           
(1)

*NOTES: (1):

      Unrestricted Fund Balance (preliminary) @ June 30, 2019 24,369,664$   

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard

Year-To-Date (2 Months)

August 31, 2019

DeVos Place®

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

-1-



FY 2019

7/1 - 8/31

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate
(1)

Budget Prior Year

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 727,451           -$                    -$                    6,261,150$      8,797,609$     

                    - Expenses - Facilities (737,147)          (4,467,311)       (4,523,497)     

                               - Base Management Fees (29,407)            (179,969)          (176,440)        

                               - Incentive Fee -                       (118,412)          (196,210)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (39,103)            -                      1,495,458        3,901,462      

   Parking 64,580             409,000           368,000         

   Pedestrian Safety (2,809)              (97,400)           (130,605)        

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 22,668             -                      1,807,058        4,138,857      

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 566,283           6,697,333        7,306,195      

                   - Expenses - Facilities (1,141,768)       (6,672,635)       (7,107,159)     

                              - Base Management Fees (29,407)            (179,969)          (176,440)        

                              - Incentive Fee -                       (241,526)          (151,879)        

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (604,892)          -                      (396,797)          (129,283)        

   Parking 214,288           1,285,730        1,336,967      

   Pedestrian Safety (722)                 (51,500)           (63,017)          

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP (391,326)          -                      837,433           1,144,667      

Other

   Revenues 90,516             685,750
(3)

651,353         

   Expenses (237,089)          (1,637,828)       (974,663)        

     Net Other (146,573)          -                      (952,078)          (323,310)        

Total Net Proceeds/Operating (515,231)          -                      -                      1,692,413        4,960,214      

Capital/Repair Expenditures (605,360)          (4,994,905)       
(2)

(4,294,340)     

Results Net of Capital/Repair Expenditures (1,120,591)       -$                    -$                    (3,302,492)$     665,874$       

Notes:
(1)

 First quarter updated full-year estimate provided at November 1st Board meeting.
(2)

 Includes budget amendment to provide for several capital project balances carried over from FY 19.  See June 2019

    consolidated financial report for details. 

(3) Excludes 4/4/19 deposit of $5 million grant proceeds from State of Michigan.  

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

FY 2020

-2-



Annual Year-To-Date

Change Change

FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive

Final Budget (Negative) 7/1-8/31 7/1 - 8/31 (Negative)

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 8,797,609$    6,261,150$     (28.8) 856,000$        727,451            (15.0)

                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,523,497)     (4,467,311)      1.2 (697,528)         (737,147)           (5.7)

                               - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (179,969)         (2.0) (29,407)           (29,407)             -                 

                               - Incentive Fee (196,210)        (118,412)         39.7             -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 3,901,462      1,495,458       (61.7)            129,065          (39,103)             (130.3)

   Parking 368,000         409,000          11.1 71,124            64,580              (9.2)              

   Pedestrian Safety (130,605)        (97,400)           25.4 (6,463)             (2,809)               56.5             

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 4,138,857      1,807,058       (56.3) 193,726          22,668              (88.3)            

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 7,306,195      6,697,333       (8.3)              555,035          566,283            2.0

                   - Expenses - Facilities (7,107,159)     (6,672,635)      6.1 (1,044,007)      (1,141,768)        (9.4)

                              - Base Management Fees (176,440)        (179,969)         (2.0) (29,407)           (29,407)             -                 

                              - Incentive Fee (151,879)        (241,526)         (59.0)            -                      -                        -                 

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (129,283)        (396,797)         (206.9) (518,378)         (604,892)           (16.7)            

   Parking 1,336,967      1,285,730       (3.8) 219,325          214,288            (2.3)              

   Pedestrian Safety (63,017)          (51,500)           18.3             (2,913)             (722)                  (75.2)            

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,144,667      837,433          (26.8) (301,966)         (391,326)           (29.6)            

Other

   Revenues 651,353         685,750 5.3 65,640            90,516              37.9             

   Expenses (974,663)        (1,637,828)      (68.0) (68,027)           (237,089)           (248.5)          

     Net Other (323,310)        (952,078)         (194.4)          (2,387)             (146,573)           (6,040.5)       

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 4,960,214      1,692,413       (65.9)            (110,627)         (515,231)           (365.7)          

Capital/Repair Expenditures (4,294,340)     (4,994,905)      (16.3) (589,821)         (605,360)           (2.6)              

Results Net of Capital Expenditures 665,874$       (3,302,492)$    (496.0)          (700,448)$       (1,120,591)        (60.0)            

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending August 31, 2019

-3-



-4-



-5-



Van Andel Arena®

      Page 1 - Five concerts generated $368,580 in event revenue, a decrease of (2.1%) from

prior year (6 concerts) of $376,356.

        Page 3 - Net proceeds of ($22,668) decreased by (88.3%) from prior year of $193,726.

DeVos Place®

      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $341,875 in event revenue, a

decrease of (2.7%) from prior year (attendance decreased from 25,690 to 22,645) of $351,469.

        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of ($391,326) decreased by (29.6%) from prior year Net Proceeds

of ($301,966).

Significant Notes

-6-



Change Change

FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive FY 2019 FY 2020 Positive

Final Budget (Negative) 7/1-8/31 7/1/-8/31 (Negative)

Other

Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 580,124$     564,750$     (2.7)              65,640$           90,516$         
('1)

37.9             

Miscellaneous 71,229         121,000       69.9             -                      -                     -                 

651,353       685,750       5.2               65,640             90,516           37.9             

Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 200,000       200,000       -                 -                      -                     -                 

Diversity Initiative 231,339       275,000       (18.9)            (3,074)             19,538           (635.6)          

Wages/Benefits 144,774       148,815       (2.8)              16,948             14,195           16.2             

Professional Services 69,606         80,000         (14.9)            264                  484                (83.3)            

DID Assessment 62,616         64,500         (3.0)              62,616             43,569           30.4             

Food & Beverage Repairs 14,095         40,000         (183.8)          -                      -                     -                 

Consulting Services 159,794       689,513       
('2)

(331.5)          (18,037)           151,393         (839.3)          

Landscaping 26,134         25,000         4.3               -                      -                     -                 

Procurement of Art 26,904         30,000         (11.5)            -                      -                     -                 

Insurance 21,457         25,000         (16.5)            6,547               6,029             7.9               

Supplies/Other 17,944         60,000         (234.3)          2,763               1,881             31.9             

974,663       1,637,828    (68.0)            68,027             237,089         (248.5)          

Net Proceeds - Operating (323,310)$    (952,078)$    (194.5)          (2,387)$           (146,573)$      (6,040.5)       

Notes:
(1)

 Excludes 4/4/19 deposit of $5 million grant proceeds from the State of Michigan.
(2)

 SMG-$54,290, $50,000 DVP long-term capital study, and hotel project manager/other project consultants-$85,223,

     and $500,000-Proof of Concept Task Force - including the engagement of architects, costing experts, and geological experts.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

August 31, 2019

-7-



Revenues:

State of Michigan Grant 5,000,000$   

Interest Earnings 33,891          

Expenses: -                   

Net Balance 5,033,891$   

4/4/19 to 8/31/19

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Special Accounts

Amphitheater Project

Revenues/Expenses

-8-



































 
 

 

 

Memorandum 

 

 
 

To:  CAA Board Members 

 

From:  Susan Waddell, Administrative Manager 

 

Date:  October 1, 2019 

 

Re:  Directors’ & Officers’ Insurance Renewal  

 

 

 

The CAA current insurance policy expired on August 23, 2019, and we just received the renewal 
coverage proposal.  Below is a summary of the renewal proposal: 
 
Insurer: Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) 
2018-19 Expiring premium: $17,349 
2019-20 Renewal premium: $17,647 
Total Change   $     298 
% Change (+ -)  1.7% 
 
Summary of Various Coverages   Limit    Deductible 
  
Liability     $15,000,000  $0 
Terrorism Liability    $5,000,000  $0 
Faithful Performance    Per Statute  $0 
Auto Liability - No-Fault   Per Statute  $0 
Terrorism Property & Crime   $50,000,000  $0 
Member’s Newly Acquired/ 
     Constructed Property   $10,000,000  $0 
Buildings & Personal Property  $1,010,070  $0 
Fine Art     $2,000,000  $0 
Blanket Employee Fidelity   $1,000,000  $0 
Data Breach & Privacy Liability  $5,000,000  $25,000 
 
 

Action Requested: Approve insurance renewal proposal. 
 


	Agenda.CAA.pdf (p.1)
	August.2019.pdf (p.2-3)
	August 2019.pdf (p.4-12)
	SMG Financial Statement.August 2019.pdf (p.13-28)
	Memo - Insurance Renewal.pdf (p.29)

